
Deutsche Bank  
 

 

 

 
KPMG Independent Auditors’ Report 
Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch 
Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 



XPflG
{Chanered Accountants)
32A, Si. Mohamod Macan Markar Mawetha,
P. O. Box 186,
Colombo 0030O,
Sri Lanka-

: +94‐ 11 5426426
: +94‐ 112445872
+94‐ 112446058
+94‐ 112541249
+94‐ 112307345
: "ww lk kpm9 com

MR M― FCA      PYS… ● FCA     CP J● y-3 FCA
TJS… FCA    WWJC商 8 FCA   Mt S u● ‐ph FCA
M3 SM B JO― ●ACA WKOCA●

―
ACA STDL― a FCA

GAU K‐ t―mtt ACA  RMOB Rup― ACA Mt BKDTN RodⅢ  ACA

…

‐S RJ 階
"●
ACMA′ u』 At輌 oy● ttaw HS G● ●●●wa●●●ACA

Ｔｅ‐
ｂ

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MANAGEMENT OF DEUTSCM BANK AG. COLOMBO BRAIYCE

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Deutsche Bank AG - Colombo Branch ('the

Branch,,), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,2014, and the income

statement, statement oiprofit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement ofchanges in equity and, cash

flow statement for the year then endd and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information set out on pages 2 to 63 ofthe financial statements.

Menagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is_responsible for the preparation ofthese financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordaace with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such intemal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Reponsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fiiancial statements based on our audit We conducted our

audit in accordance with Sri l,anka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment including the assessment ofthe

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, ttre auditor considers internal connol relevant to the entity's preparation ofthe financial statements

that give a tnre and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's intemal control. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true ard fair view ofthe financial position of the Branch as at

December 31, 2014, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

CttRTERED A
Colombo,SH Lanka

24 March 2015
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DEUTSCHE BANK AG― COLOMBO BRANCH

For the year ended 31sl December

INCOME STATEMENT

Interest Income

L€ss : Interest Expenses

Net hterest ltrcoDe

Fee and Commission Income

Less : Fee and Commission E;perses

Net Fee and Commission Income

Net Trading Income

Other Operating Income

Totrl Operathg Income

Revenal(Charge) for Impairment on Loan Losses

Net Operating Income

Personnel Experses

Other Experses

Operating Profit Before Value Added Tar
and Nation Building Tax on Financial Sen'ices

Value Added Tax and Nation Building Tax on Financial Services

Profit Before Income Tar

Less : Income Tax Expenses

Profit for the Year

Profrt for the year

0ther Comprehensive Income

Items that will be never reclassified to profit or loss

Net acturial loss on Defined Benefit plan

Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or loss

Change in Fair Value ofAvailable - for -Sale Financial Asses

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

2,769,782,761    2,527,751,179

337,731,517 268,147,228

2,432,051,244    2,259,603,951

913,393,468 875,800,652

27,476,833 31.694、 635

885,916,635     844,106,017

715,634,322     968,977,763

72,632,505      85,208,406

4,106,34,706   4,157,896,137

10,877,667     (12,272,779)

4,117,112,73 4,145,623,358

439,798,053     419,284,686

1,099,197,053    1,328,759,995

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.Notes

5

5

6

6

7

8

9

10

11

12     2,578,117,67   2,397,578,677

13       353,105,192     266,435,959

2,25,012,076    2,131,142,718

14 734,774,630     822,197,968

STATEⅣ田 NT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCO■ IE

1,440,37,446 1,308,944,750

1,440,237,446    1,308,944,750

(16,878,13つ

156,224,762 33,371,094

139,346,625 33,371,094

1,579,584,071    1,342,315,844

The annexed notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part ofthese Financial Statements.



DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSI「 10N

As at 31st December

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalens
Balances with Central Bank

Placement rYith Banks

Derivative Financial lnstruments

Fhancial Investsnent Held for Trading

Group Balances ReceiYable

Loans and Reccirrables to Other Customem

Financial investnents - Available for Sale

Prope(y, Plant and Equipment

Defened Tax Assets

Other Assets

Totel Assets

Liebilitie,s and Equity
Liebilities
Due to Banks

Derivatives Financial Instuments

Due to Other Customers

Other Borrowings
C\rcnt Tax Liability
Employee Benefis
Qther Liabilities
Group Balances Payable

Subordinded Term Debt

Total Liabilities

Equity
Assigned Capital
Statutory Reserve Fund

Retained Eamings

Other Reserves

Total Equity
Total Equity and Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities 8trd CoDmitments

５

６

７

８

９

０

１

２

３

４

５

１

１

１

１

１

２

２

２

２

２

２

2014

Rs.

2,935,395,263

13,032,443249

123,536,106

7,329,046,472

516,640,827

9,019,578,137

6,383,941,353

90,353,760

22,053,957

1,620,479,062

41,073,468,186     33,131,678,815

2013

Rs.

297,137,457

201,120,880

916,300,785

86,377,891

14,541,748,959

561,019,324

9,063,641,022

5,971286,516

121,548,351

15,630,384

1,355,867,246

６

　

７

　
８

　
９

２

　

２

　

２

　

２

０

　

１

　

２

　
３

３

　
３

　
３

　
３

４

　

５

　
６

　
７

３

　

３

　

３

　
３

116,674,891

14,666,992,198

350,300,000

259,803,421

122,056,887

355,316,386

13,621,404,297

1,387,742213

2,669,702,598

161,890,976

9,732,350,966

232,900,000

200,944i129

98,625,245

279,144,920

7,470,405,817

1,564203295

30,880,290,293 22,410,167,946

4,410,461,270

486,930,013

3,194,276,066

2,101,510,544

4,410,461,70

415,762,048

2,932,396,553

2,962,890,998

10,193,177,893 10,721,510,869

41,073,468,186     33,131,678,815

38      19,520,807,898     22,889,794,790

The annexed notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part ofthese Financial Statements.

The Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation ofthese Financial Statements.

Approy d signed for and on behalf ofthe Management:

Rohan Rodrigo

24th March 2015

Colombo
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DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Fot th. yeor cnd.d 31sl Dac.mb.t

C.sh Flows ftorrl Op.rrtint Acliviti.s
Profit bcfor. t ntioo
AdjustD.trt for:
Noo-cash items includcd in profits b€fore tax

hterest crycose o0 $tbodinare dcbb

Chmgc in op.r'ating asseb

ChaEe in operatiDg liabililies
Nct gaiD tom invcsting activiti6
C@Ertuiou paid to dcfiDed bencfit ples
Tax paid

Nct..!h gc..r.t d frod(o!.d in) op.rrtiDg .clivitiG

Crsh trlows from lnvcstitrg Activiti.s
Prrchase ofpropcrty, pl.nt md equipmeot

Dvid.dd reccivcd troE iDvcstD€ot

Net rmrealised gain / loss iom easl*ioa ofFiaaocial $arcmcnrs ofForeig! Opcrarion

Nct c.rh ulad in gc[cr.tcd irv6tiag .ctivitics

C.sh Flofls fiom Fir.Dcing Activiai.s
Lrtercst paid on subordioarcd dcbt

Pro6t tsmsfGr to bead office
NGi c.sh ulcd ir fimDciEg .ctivitiet
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ヽ                                           Rs
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1596250)  (416,250)
(10“嬌 590)  (2,250,Ollll)
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5962m     416,250
(75,17,9941 18,929,470
f80555579)(25,469,“ 5)

(28,777,744)    (24,812,122)

(2,032599,053)(765,520,831)

(2,l161,76,79η (790,332,953)

2,638,257,806   (1,630,051,063)
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DEUTSCHE BANK AG― COLOPIBO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEIIENTS

1. REPORTINGENTITY

1.1 Reporting entity

Deutsche Bank AG is a public quoted company incorporated in Germany with limited liability, which

carries out banking activities in Sri knka tl[ough Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch ("Branch").

The registered office ofDeutsche BankAG, Colombo Branch and the principle place ofbusiness are

both located at No 86, Galle Road Colombo 03, Sri tanka-

1.2 Principal activities

The principal activities of the Branch continued to be banking and;lated activities such as accepting

deposits, corporate banking, ofthore banking foreign currency operations, t-ade services, Trust &
Domestic Custody services, Investnent Banking etc.

1.3 Number of employees

The permanem staf strength of the Branch as at 3 I December 20 1 4 is 63 (2013 - 63)

2. BASISOFPPiEPARATION

2.1 Stltement of compliance

The financial statements ofthe Branch have been prepared in accordance with Sri knka Accounting

standards (LI(AS) prefixed both SLFRS (conesponding to IFRS) and LKAS (corresponding to IAs),
promulgated by the Instittrte of Chartered Accountants of Sri Larka (ICASL) and comply with the

requirements ofthe Barking Act No 30 of 1988 and amendments thereto.

2.2 Management Responsibility on Financial Statements

The Management of the Branch is responsible for preparing and presenting these financial statements

in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard.

These Financial Statements include the following components:

. an Income Statement and a Statement ofProfit or Loss and Other Comprehensive hcome
providing the information on the financial performance ofthe Branch for the year ;
. a Statement ofFinancial Position providing the information on the financial position ofthe
Branch as at the year-end ;. a Statemeni of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in shareholden' funds during the year of
the Branch ;. a Statement ofCash Flows providing the information to the users, on the ability ofthe Branch to
generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs ofentities to utilise those cash flows ;
. Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Accounting Policies and other explanatory

information.
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2.3 Approval of Financial Statemenb by the Manegement

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Management on 24 March 2015.

2.4 Basis of messurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement offinancial position:

o Financial instuments designated at fair value through profit or loss are measrned at fair value.

. Financial instruments such as loans, receivables and deposits arc at amortised cost

. Available for sale financial assets are measrn'ed at fair value.

. The defined benefit asset is recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The Branch maintains separate books for Domestic Banking Unit @BtI) and Foreign Currency

Banking Unit (FCBLI). Accompanying financial statements have been prepared by consolidating the

financial statements of the Domestic Barking Unit and Foreign Curency Banking Unit

2.5 Basis of consolidation

The Branch's Financial Statements comprise the amalgamation of the Financial Statements of the

Domestic Banking Unit (DBLI), the OflShore Banking Unit (FCBLI). Both units have a common

financial year which ends on December 31.

2.5 Presentation of Finencial Statements

The assets and liabilities of the Branch presented in the Stalement of Financial Position are grouped by

nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattem.

No adjustnents have been made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements'

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Income and Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income, unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard or

interpretatior! and as specifically disclosed in the Accounting Policies ofthe Branch.

2.7 Materiality and Aggregetion

Each material ctass of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented sepamtely unless they are immaterial as permitted by Sri

I-anka Accounting Standard - LKAS 1 on 'Presentation ofFinancial Statements'.

2.8 Comparative Information

The comparative information iS reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the curent year's

presentation in order to provide better presentation.

・
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.9 Use of estimates and iudgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with LKAS requires management to make

judgnents, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the

ieported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Judgments and estimates are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations that are believed to be reasonable under

lhe circumstances. Hence actual results may differ from those estimaies and j udgrnental decisions.

Estimates and underlying assumPtions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisiors to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any fi.mfe periods

affected.

lnformation about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements is included in the following notes:

hparlnent ofFinand」 instrtlmcnts NotC 3 6 9)

hPai11llCnt ofnon flnancial assets(Note 3 7)

Curcnttaxation oOtC 3 3 1 a)

Dcfcrred taxatlon cote 3 3 1 b)

Defmcd Beneflt Plan oote 3 13 3)

Conllnlments and Co血ngencies ootc 3 15)

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOIJNTINGPOLICIES

The Branch has adopted SLFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' with a date of initial application of l$
January 2014. Excep for the changes specified above, the Accounting policies set out below have

been consistently applied to all period presented in these Financial Statements.

3.1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective fi:nctional currencies of the Branch

at exchange rates ai the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate

at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cunencies that are measured at

fair value are retranslated to the functional cu'rency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value

was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retanslation are recognised in profit or loss,

Non-monetary items tiat are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign crnrency are translated

using the exchange rate at the date of the tansaction.

3.2 Translation of Measurement Currency

The Branch uses Sri Lankan Rupees as their measurement currency for Domestic Banking Unit and

United State Dollars as their measurement currency for foreign Currency Banking Unit books.

For consolidation purposes accompanying Financial Statements have been prepared in Sri Lanka

Rupees after convirting the Foreign Currency Banking Unit financial statements into Sri Lanka

Rupees.
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The translation is performed based on the guidelines in LKAS 21 "The EffecS of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates" stated below:

o All current assets and curent liabilities (i.e including comparatives) are translated at the closing

rate of each reporting date

. Iocome and expense items for all periods (i.e including comparatives) are translated Lt avetage

exchange rates pertaining to each period

. Equiry items other than the net profit or loss for the period are translated at the historical rate

existing at the date of each tansaction

All exchange diferences resulting from translation in accordance with the above are recognised

directly in equity

3.3 Taxation

3.3.1 Income Tax Erpenses

Income tax expense comprises current and defened tar It is recogised in lncome Statement except

to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

a) Current Taxation

The Branch's liability to taxation has been computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland

Revenue Act No I 0 of 2006 and amendments thereto.

b) Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method providing for temporary differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxition purposes. The amount of defened tax provided is based on the expected manner of reali,^iion
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially

enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the future asset can be utilized. Defened tax assets are reduced to the extent

that is no longer probabte that the related tax benefit will be realized.

3.3.2 Other taxes

a) Crop Insurance Levy (CIL )

As per the provision ofthe section 14 ofthe finance Act No.l2 of20l3, the CIL was introduced with

effect from April 01, 2013 and is payable to the Nation Insurance Trust Fund, Currently, the CIL is
payable at 1olo ofthe profit after tax.
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り Value Added Tax o口 Financial Ser宙 ces

The value base for thc computaticln ofvalue added tax on inanclal serviccs is calculatcd by atuSing

thc dettation∞ mputcd on rates prescrlbed by Departlnent of hland Revenue to the accoШ ing

proit before lncome tax and emoluments Payable Emoluments payable includc beneflts in money and

notin money inclu“ ng con面 b面on or pro宙sion relating to tennlnal beneflts

o Na●on B■ilttng Tax on Financial Senices―

Wlth efFect“ m Janu0 01,2014 11BT of 2%was introduced on supply on flnanclal servlccs宙 a an

alllendments to the■ lBT Act No 09,of2009 NBT is charged on the salne basis used for calculajon of

VAT on mancial scMces as explalned abovc

The mount of V」
“

Ad“d Tax and NBT charrd h dete_血 g the pro乱 ∝ l∝sfor h P“oぃ
gilVen in the lncome Statcment on page 02

ASSETS AND BASES OF■ H":IR VALUAT10N

3.4 CasL and cash eq血alents

Cash and cash equlvalenls include notes and coins in hand,ulEsdcted balances hcld with the Central

B翻し of SH Lanka and highly liq面d inancial assets with matties ofttu monh orless hm the
acquisiion date that are sJ"eCt tO an insigjicant● sk of changcs in the[価 r vJue,and are used by

the Branch in the managemcnt oflts shorttenn cormmments

Cash and cash equlvalents are carncd at amortised costin the statement ofmancial Posmon

3.5  Statutory deposits口 nth central Bank

The Monettty Law Act reqlures that all commercial banks opemttg in Sn Lanka to mantaln rescrves

against all deposit liabilltles dcnominatcd in S‖ Lankan Rup∝s The dctalls of rescrve requrements

are glvcn in Note 16 to the Financial Statements

3.6 Finallcial lnstruments―  CIassiflcaion,Inithi Recoglli■ oll and Subsequent Measuremellt

3.6.l Classiflca6on

The Branch classiflcs its flnancial asscts and liabilities into the following categodes:inancial asscts

and liabilities at fair valuc through proit or loss,loans and reccivables,flnancial assets available for

SJC(“劇FS")and othcr inand」 habllLs Approp五 ate dasЫ ication of inanclal asses and liabihics

is detenllined atthe ime ofi五 tial recognition Or when reclassifled in the inancial position

3.6.2 Financial assets

IIlihal Recogni● on

Tllc Branch iitially recognises loans and advanccs,deposits,debt secu五 tics issued and subordinated

hablitles on thc date at which they are onglnated Rerllar Way purchases and salcs of inanclal asscts

10
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are recognised on the trade date al which the branch commits to purchase or sell the asset All other

financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss) are initially recogrised on the trade date at which the branch becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial Asset Derecognition

A financial asset is mnsidered for derecogrition when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

financial asset expire, or the Brach has eitlrer transferred the contrachral right to receive the cash flows

from that asser, or has assumed an obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more recipients, subject

to certain criteria

The Branch derecogrizes a transferred financial asset if it transfers substantially all the risks and

rewards ofownership and it does not retain control ofthe financial asseL

In transactions in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset are

neither retained nor transferred, the Branch derecognizes the transferred asset if control over that asset,

i.e. the practical ability to sell tlrc tansferred asseq is relinquished The rights and obligations retained

in the transfer are recognized separately as assets and liabilities, as appropriate. If control over the

asset is retaine4 the Branch contirues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing

involvement, which is determined by the extent to which it remains exposed to changes in the value of
the tansferred assel

The derecognition criteda are also applied to the transfer of part of an asset, rather than the asset as a

whole, or to a group of similar financial assets in their entirety, when applicable. Iftraasferring a part

of an asset, such pan must be a specifically identified cash flow, a fully proportionare share of the

asse! or a fully proportionate share ofa specifically identified cash flow.

On derecognition ofa financial asseg the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the

carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and sum of (i) the consideration

received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) the cumutative $in
or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss

Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Instruments st Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Branch classifies certain financial assets and financial liabilities as either held for trading or

designated at fair value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair value and presented as financial

asseG at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

respectively. Related realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in net gains (losses) on

financial assets,4iabilities at fair value through lncome Statement.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss in the

following circumstances:

11
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i. A group of financial assets or liabilities or both is managed and its performance is evaluated on a

fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or invesfinent strates/.
ii. The designation eliminates or sigrificantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

iii. The asset or liability contains one or more embedded derivatives unless: (a) the embedded

derivative does not significantly modiry the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the

contract; or (b) it is clear with little or no analysis that separation is prohibited.

Financial asas heldfor trading

Financiat assets are classified as held for t-ading if they have been originate4 acquired or incurred

principally for the purpose of selling or rePurchasing in the near term or they form part of a

iro.tfotio of identified financial instuments that are managed together and for which there is

evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recognised in the Income Statement- Interest and dividend income is

recorded in 'Net trading income' according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to
receive the payment has been established.

The Branch evaluates its financial assets held for trading other than derivatives, to determine

whether the intention to sell them in the near terrn is still appropriate. When the Branch is unable

to tade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intention to sell them in

the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Branch may elect to reclassiff these financial

assets in rare circumstances.

The Branch has Sri lanka Governrnent Securities held for trading designated at fair value through

profit or loss.

b) Loans and Receivables

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and

subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. When the Branch

chooses to designate the loans and advances as measured at fair value tlrough profit or loss, they are

measured at fair value with face value changes recognized immediately in lncome Statement.

When the Branch purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the

asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock

borrowing), the arrangement is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not

recognized in the branch's financial statements.

The Branch has classified cash and cash equivalent, balances with Central Bank, group balance

receivables and loans and receivables to other customers as Loans and Receivables.

c) Financial Investments Available-for-Sale

Financial assets that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss or as loans and receivable

are classified as AIS. A financial asset classified as AFS is initially recognized at its fair value plus

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe financial asset. The amortization

of premiums and accretion of discount are recorded in net interest income. Financial assets classified

as AFS are carried at fair value with the changes in fair value reported in statement of profit or loss

う
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and other comprehensive income, unless the asset is subject to a fair value hedge. For monetary

financial assets classified as AFS (for example, debt instruments), changes in carrying amomts

relating to changes in foreign exchange rate are recognized in the income statement and other changes

in carling amount are recognized in equity as indicated above. For financial assets classified as AI'S

that arl not monetary items (for example, equity irstruments), the gain or loss that is recognized in

equity includes any related foreign exchange component

The Branch has Sri Lanka Government Securities and unquoted equity securities designarcd as

available-for-sale.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Branch may reclassi! certain financial assets out of the financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss classification (trading assets) and the AFS classification into the loars classification. For assets

to be reclassified there must be a clear change in management intent with respect to the assets since

initial recogrition and the financial asset must meet the definition ofa loan at the reclassification date.

Additionally, there must be an intent and ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable funlre at the

reclassification date.

Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss already

recognized in the Statement of Income is not reversed. The fair value of the instrument at

reclassification date becomes the new amortized cost of the instrument. The expected cash flows on

the financial irsfumens are estimated at tlle reclassi4cation date and these estimates are used to

calculate a new effective interest rate for the instruments. If there is a subsequent increase in expected

future cash flows on reclassified assets as a result of increased recoverability, the effect ofthat increase

is recognized as an adjustnent to the effective interest rate from the date of the change in estimate

rather than as an adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset at the dale ofthe change in estimate' If
there is a subsequent decrease in expected futx.e cash flows the asset would be assessed for

impairment as discussed in the section entitled "Impairment of Loans and Provision for Off-Balance

Sheet Positions". Any change in the timing of the cash flows of reclassified assets which are not

deemed impaired are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset'

For instruments reclassified from AFS to loans, any unrealized gain or [oss recognized in other

comprehensive income is subsequently amortized into interest income using the effective interest rate

of the instrument. If the instrument is subsequently impaired, any unrealized loss which is held in

accumulated other comprehensive income lor that instrument at that date is immediately recognized in

the Statement of lncome as a loan loss provision.

To the extent that assets categorized as loans are repaid restructured or eventually sold and the amount

received is less than the carrying value at that time, then a loss would be recognized in the Statement

of income as a component of the provision for credit losses, if the loan is impaired or otherwise in

other Income, ifthe loan is not impaired.
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As at the reporting date, the Branch has not made any such reclassification of financial asses.

3.6.3 Derivatives

Derivatives are used to manage exposues to interest rate, foreign curency, credit and other market

price risks, including exposures arising fiom forecast transactions. All freestanding contracts that are

tonsidered derivatives for accormting purposes are carried at fair value on the statement of financial
position regardless of whether they are held for tading or non-trading purposes.

Changes in fair value on derivatives held for trading are included in gain (loss) on financial

assetsniabilities at fair value tlrough profit or loss.

3.6.4 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration received less directly

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at

amortised cosL The Branch does not have any non-derivative financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include deposits fiom

customers, deposis fiom banks and debt securities issued and other borowed funds.

3.6.5 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A finaacial liability is derecogrrized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or

expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

diiferent terms, or the terms of the existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as a derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement

3.6.6 Offsefting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial tiabilities are offset and ttre net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under SLFRSs, or for gains

and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading activity.

3.6.7 Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost ofa financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measued at initial

recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective

inte;st method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount,

minus any reduction for impairment.

14
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3.6.8 Determination of Fair Value

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial insfument at initial recognition is the transaction

price, i.e-, the fair value ofthe consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that inst-ument

is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instument

(i.e., without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include

only data from observable markets.

Fair vatue is defined as the price at which an asset or liability could be exchanged in a current

transaction between knowtedgiable, willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair

value ofinstruments that are quoted in active markets is determined using the quoted prices where they

represent those at which regularly and recently occurring arm's length transactions take place. The

branch uses valuation techniques to establish the fair value of instrumenB where prices quoted in

active markets are not available. Therefore, where possible, parameter inputs to the valuation

techniques are based on observable data derived from prices of relevant instuments traded in an active

markei Tlrese valuation techniques involve some level of management estimation and judgnen! the

degree of which will depend on the price transparency for the instrument or market and the

inJtrument's compleity. The valuation process to determine fair value also includes making

appropriate adjustments to the valuation model outputs to consider factors such as bid-offer spread

uJu"tio, adjustments, liquidity and credit risk (both counterparty credit risk in relation to financial

assets and the non-performance in relation to financial liabilities)-

The financial instruments carried at fair value have been calegorized under the three levels of the IFRS

fair value hierarchy as follows:

kvel I - Instruments valued using quoted prices in active markets are instuments where the fail
value can be determined directly fom prices which are quoted in active, liquid markets and where the

instrument observed in the market is representative of that being priced in the Group's inventory.

These include: government bonds, exchange-t-aded derivatives and equity securities traded on active,

liquid exchanges.

Level 2 - Instruments valued with valuation techniques using observable market data are instruments

where the fair value can be determined by reference to similar instruments tading in active markets, or

where a technique is used to derive the valuation but where all inputs to that technique are observable.

These include: many OTC derivatives; many investment-grade listed credit bonds; some CDS; many

collateralized debt obligafions (CDO); and many less-liquid equities.

Level 3 - Instruments valued using valuation techniques using market data which is not directly

observable are instruments where the fair value cannot be detennined directly by reference to market-

observable information, and some other pricing technique must be employed. Instruments classified in

this category have an element which is unobservable and which has a significant impact on the fair

value.

3.6.9 Identification and measurement of impairment

At each reporting date, the branch assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset not

carried at iair value through profit and loss or a goup of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset

or group offinancial asses is impaired and impairment losses are incurred ifthere is:
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- objective evidence of impairment as a result ofa loss event that occurred after the initial recognition

of the asset and up to the reporting date ('a loss event");

- the loss event had an impact on the estimated firture cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets; and

- a reliable estimate ofthe loss amount can be made-

The Branch first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loaas that are

initividually sigrificant. It then assesses collectively for loans that are not individually significant and

loans whiih are significant br:t for which therc is no objective evidence of impairment under the

individual assessmenl

.Impairment of Financial Assets carried et amortizzd Cost

a) Individual Assessment of Impairment

To allow the Branch to determine whether a loss event has occuned on an individual basis, all significant

counterparty relationships are reviewed periodically. This evaluation considers current information and

events related to the counterparty, such as the counterparty experiencing significant financial difiiculty or

a breach of contrac! for example, default or delinquency in interest or principal pa)'rnents. If there is

evidence of impairment leading to an impairment loss for an individual cotmterparty relationship, then the

amount of the ioss is determined as the difference between the carrying amormt of the loan(s), including

accrued interest, and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's original

effective interest rate or the effective interest rate established upon reclassification to loans, including cash

flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collaleral. The carrying

amount of thi loans is reduced by the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is

recognized in the income statement as a component ofthe provision for credit losses.

b) Collective assessment of Impairment

The collective assessment of impairment is principally to establish an allowance amount relating to loans

that are either individually significant but for which there is no objective evidence of impairment, or are

not individually significant but for which there is, on a portfolio basis, a loss amount that is probable of
having occurred and is reasonably estimable. The loss amount has three components. The first component

is an imount for Eansfer and currency convertibility risks for loan exposures in countries where there are

serious doubts about the ability of counterparties to comply with the repayment terms due to the economic

or political situation prevailing in the respective country of domicile. This amount is calculated using

ratings for country risl and transfer risk which are established and regularly reviewed for each country in

whicf, the Group does busingss. The second component is an allowance amount representing the incurred

losses on the portfolio of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, which are loans to individuals and small

business customers of the private and retail business. The loans are grouped according to similar credit

risk characteristics and thi allowance for each group is determined using statistical models based on

historical experience. The third component represents an estimate of incuned losses inherent in the group

of loans thit have not yet .6een individually identified or measured as part of the smaller-balance

homogenized loans. Loans that were found not to be impaired when evaluated on an individual basis are

included in the scope ofthis component ofthe allowance.

The computation is carriei out on a centralized basis and the branch is advised on the provision applicable

to the country. Accordingly related provision is made in the Financial Statements.
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Once a loan is identified as impaired, although the accrual of interest in accordance with the contactual

terms of the loan is discontinue4 the accretion ofthe net present value ofthe written down amount ofthe
loan due to lhe passage of time is recognized as interest income based on the original effective interest

rate ofthe loan.

At each reporting date, all impaired loans are reviewed for changes to the present value of expected

future cash flowJ discounted at the loan's original effective intercst rate. Any change to the previously

recognized impairment loss is recognized as a change to the allowance account and recorded in the

income statement as a component ofthe provision for credit losses.

When it is considered that there is no realistic prospect ofrecovery and all collateral has been realized or

t ansferred to the Brarcl; the loan and any associated allowance is written off. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credited to the allowance accourt and recorded in the income statement as a component of the

provision for credit losses.

The process to determine the provision for off-balance sheet positions is similar to the methodolory used

for loans. Any loss amounts are recognized as an allowance in the Statement ofFinancial Position within

other liabilities and charged to the income statement as a component ofthe provision for credit losses.

If in a subsequent period the amount of a previously recognized impairment loss decreases and the

decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the imPairment was recognized the

impairment loss is reversed by reducing the allowance account accordingly. Such reversal is recognized

in profit or loss.

Impairment ofFinancial Investments - Available for Sale

For financial assets classified as AFS, the Branch assesses at each reporting date whether there is

objective evidence that an individual asset is impaired.

In the case of equity investrnents classified as A-FS, objective evidence includes a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value ofthe investment below cost. [n the case of debt securities classified

as A.FS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as for loans.

If there is evidence of impainnent, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income,

are recognized in the income statement for the period, reported in net gains (losses) on financial assets

availablJ for sale. The impairment loss for the period is determined as the difference between the

acquisition cost (net of any principal repayments and amortization) and current fair value of the asset

less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the income statement.

When an AIS debt security is impaired, subsequent decreases in fair value are recognized in the

statement of income as it is considered further impairment. Any subsequent increases are also

recognized in the statement of income until the asset is no longer considered impaired. When the fair

valui of the AFS debt security recovers to at least amortized cost it is no longer considered impaired and

subsequent changes in fair value are reported in other comprehensive income.

Reverials of impairment losses on equity investments classified as AFS are not reversed through the

income statemenq increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized in other comprehensive

income.
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3.7 Inpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Branch's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed

at each reporting date to determine whether therc is any indication of impairment If any such

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated- For intangible assets tlEt have

indefinite usefirl lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amormt is estimated each

year at the same time. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asiet exceeds is
estimated recoverable amounl

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fiJture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

ipecific to the asset. For the purpose of impaiment testing, assets that cannot be tesed individually are

grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows tom continuing use that

are largely independent ofthe cash inflows of other assets.

Impairment losses are recognised in Income Statement.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

3.E.1 Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe asset Thb cost of self-

constructed assets includes the cost ofmaterials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable

to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and

removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.

Cost alsi may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifiing cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property and equipment Purchased software that is integral to the

functionality ofthe related equipment is capitalised as part ofthat equipment.

When parts ofan item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the

p.o"J"dr fro. disposaf with the carrying arnount of the item of property and equipmen! and is

recognised in other operating income/other overhead expenses in the income statement'

3.8.2 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying

amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Branch and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognised. The costs ofthe day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in

the income statement as incurred.
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3.83 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful

lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment since this most closely reflects the

expected pattern of consumpion ofthe firture economic benefits embodied in the asset

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

compmercqdpment
OfFlce equlpment mmiturc&ittngs,― es

Safes

Telephonc/Tele pnnter,Ar● ondltloners

Others

200/0-331/3%
20%
5%-20%
1250/0-20%
10%-331β %

Deprcciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the dates on

which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecogrised.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and

adjusted if appropriate.

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

3.9 Deposits and subordinated liabilities

Deposits and subordinated liabilities are the Branch's sources of debt fimding.

Deposits include non-interest bearing deposits, savings deposits, term deposits and deposits

red'eemable at call. Bonowings include repurchase borrowings, call and time deposits, vostro balances

and borrowings from financial institutions.

Subsequent to initial recognition deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are

measured at their amortised cost using the ef[ective interest method, except where the Branch

designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

3.10 Repurchase Agreements

Securities purchased under resale agreements ("reverse repurchase agreements") and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase ("repurchase agreements") are treated as collateralized financings and

are reco-gnized initially at fair value, being the amotmt of cash disbuned and received, respectively.

The party disbursing the cash takes possession of the securities serving as collateral for the financing

and i,uuing a markit value equal to, or in excess of the principal amount loaned. The securities

received under reverse repurchase agreements and securities delivered under repurchase agreements

are not recognized on, or derecognized from, the financial position, unless the risks and rewards of
ownership are obtained or relinquished.
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Interest eamed on reverse repurchase agreements and interest incuned on repurchase agreements is

reported as interest income and interest expense, respectively.

3.ll Provisions

A provision is recognized in the Financial Position when the Brauch has a legal or constructive

obtigation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligatior! and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation.

The amormt recognized as a provision is the net estimate of the consideration required to setde the

present obtigation as of the reporting date, taking into account the risk and tmcertainties surrounding

the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted and meastfed at the

presenl value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation, using a pre-tax rate

that reflecS the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recogrrized as interest expense.

When all or some of all the economic benefiS required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered fiom a third party (for example, because the obligation is covered by an insurance policy),

an asset is recognized if it is virtually certain that reimbunement will be received.

3.12 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracB are contracB that require the issuer to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Branch has chosen to apply the fair value option to certain written financial guarantees that are

maaaged on a fair value basis. Financial guamntees that the Branch has not designated at fair value are

recognized initially in the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee is given.

Subsequent to initial recogrition, tlre Branch's liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the

higher of the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization, and the best estimate of the

expenditure required to settle any financial obligation as of the reporting date. These estimates are

determined based on experience with similar transactions and history of past losses, and management's

determination of the bast estimate.

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is recorded in the statement of income in provision

for credit losses.

3.13 Employee benefits

3.13.1 Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as

the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under

short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Branch has a present legal or constructive
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obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the ernployee and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

3.f3.2 Defined contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a pct-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed

contibutions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

amounb. Obligations fbr such contribrsions covering all employees are recogrised as an expense in

profit and loss when incurred.

3.133 Defined benefit Phn

a) Retiring Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The Branch accounts for the provision for Defined Benefit Plan -
Gratuity in conformity with LKAS l9 - Employee Benefits. However, under the payment of Gratuity

ect No. lz of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on completion offive yean of continued

service.

The Branch measures the present value of promised rctircment benefits of gra.tuity using the actuarial

valuation method as recommended by LI(AS 19- Employee Benefits, with the advice ofa Consultant

Actuary.

The Gratuity liability is not extemally fimded.

Recognition of actuarial gain/ (mses)

The Branch recognizes atl actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

b) Share based payment transactions

Restricted Equity Award (REA)

Tofal compensation decisions to employees are generally communicated in February each year.

Individuali receiving deferred compensation delivered as a Restricted Equity Award ("REA") will
have this ,"st on a p.o rata basis ovir three years. In order to calculate the number of Deutsche Bark
(,DB') share units in an individual REA, the EUR equivalent value of the Award (using the Branch's

iol4-year-end exchange rates) is divided by the average closing DB share price during the first ten

trading days of Febnrary of the following performance year. A premium, consisting of an additional

S"Z" of O6 Share units, will be added to the Award- This premium does not form part of Total

Compensation, and reflects the fact that the Award does not attract annual dividends. Valuation of
sharei is conducted on a centralized basis at the group level. Branch is advised on the apportionment.

This amoturt is charged to the statement ofincome as an expense.
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3.14 Investment Fund Account

Branches were required to bansfer 8% ofthe profits calculated for the payment of Value Added Tax

(VAT) on financial services and 5% ofthe profits before tax calculated for the payment of income tax

to a fund identified as 'In\/estrnent Fund Accormt' (IFA) for a period of three years as per a proposal

made in Govemment Budget 2011. Since the above mentioned three year period has lapsed the Branch

has transferred the balance in the above reserve fund to retained eamings during 2014.

3.15 Commitments and Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot

be estimated r"ii"bly, th" obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed

by the occurrence or non-occrnrence of one or more fi.rture events, are also disclosed as contingent

liabilities unless the probability of outflow ofeconomic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain firture events beyond the control of the

Branch. The Branch does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its existence where inflows of
economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain-

INCOME STATEMENT

3.16 Interest income / expense

Interest from all interest bearing asses and liabilities is recognized as net interest income using the

effective interest rate method The efective interest rate is the method of calculating the amortized

costs of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest income or expense over the

relevant period using the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset or liability. The estimated future cash flows used in this calculation include those

determined by the contractual terms of the asset or liability, all fees that are considered to be integral to

the effective interest rate, direct and incremental tansaction costs attributable to the acquisition ofthe
financial assets or liability and all other premiums and discounts..

When financial assets are reclassified from trading or available for sale to loans a new effective

interest rate is established on the fair value on the date of reclassification and on the best estimate of
future expected cash flows.

3.17 Fee and Commission income / expense

The recognition of fee revenue (including commissions) is determined by the purpose for the fees and

the basiJof accounting for any associated financial instruments. If there is an associated financial

instrument, fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of that financial instrument are

included within the effective yield calculation. However, if the financial instrument is carried at fair

value through profit or loss, any associated fees are recognized in profit or loss when the inslrument is

initially recignized provided there are no significant unobservable inputs used in determining its fair

value. iees eamed from services that are provided over a specified service period are recognized over
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that service period. Fees eamed for the completion of a specific service or sigificant event are

recognized when the service has been completed or the event has occurred.

3.I8 Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive income is established Usually this is the ex-

dividend date for equity where the Branch receives on its mandatory investnents in lanka Clear (Pvt)

Ltd and Credit Information Bureau of Sri lanka- These are accounted for in NA Other Operating

lncome in the Income Statement

3.19 Net trading income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes

all realiseJ and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.20 ProfiUtoss from sale of Property' plent & equipment

ProfiVloss from sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the period in which tlre sale

occurred and is classified as other income.

3.21 Other erpeuses

The expenditure incurred on personal cost, premises, equipment and establishment has been

apportioned between the FCBU and the DBU based on the volume oftransactions.

3.22 Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a staight-line basis over the

term of the lease. lrase incentives rcceived are recognised as an integral part of the total lease

expense, over the term ofthe lease.

3.23 Value Added Tax on financial services

The basis for the computation of Value Added Tax on financial services is the accounting profit before

income tax adjrsted for economic depreciation and emoluments of employees computed on the

prescribed rate.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement has been prepared by using the "lndirect Method" of preparing ofcash flow

stalement in accordance with the LKAS 7, Cash Flow Statements.

Segment Reporting
Aioperating segmen-t is a component ofthe Branch that engages in business activities from which it

."y i"- r"i"nri"s and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with

つ
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any of the Branch's other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the

Management Committee to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its

performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

These include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a

reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, and tax

assets and liabilities.

The fotlowing business segments represent the Group's organizational structurE as reflected in its

internal management reporting systems as ofDecember 31,2014.

. Corporate Banking & Securities (CB&S)

. Global Transaction Banking (GTB)

. Dedsche Asset & Wealth Management (Deutsche AWM)

. Asset & Wealth Management (AWM)

. Private & Business Clients (PBC)

. Non-Core Operations Unit (NCOL[)

Ofthe above, only Corporate Banking & Securities (CB&S) business and Global Transaction Banking
(GTB) business is represented in Sri Lanka-

Corporcte Banking & Secwitics (CB&S) comprises the Markets and Corporate Finance business

diviiions. These businesses offer financial products worldwide and combine the sales, trading and

structudng ofa wide range of financial market products, including bonds, equities and equityJinked
products, exchange-traded and over-thetounter derivatives, foreign exchange, money market

hstruments and securitized instruments. CB&S serves corporate and institutional clients, ranging from

multinational corporations to banl6 and sovereign organizations

'Global 
Transartirln Banking (GIB) consists of the business divisions Trade Finance and Cash

Management and Securities Services. It provides commercial banking products and services for both

corporate clients and financial institutions worldwide, including domestic and cross-border payments,

risli management and financing of international trade as well as trust, agency, depositary, custody and

related services. GTB serves corporate and institutional clients, ranging from medium-sized enterprises

to multinational corporations, fi nancial institutions and sovereign organizations.
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4. New Accounting Standards issued but not yet efiective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards which have been issued but not yet

effective as at the Reporting date have not been applied in preparing these financial statements.

Accordingly, the following Accounting Standards have not been applied in preparing these

Financial Statements.

The Branch plans to apply these standards on the respective effective dates.

The following new Accounting Standards are not expected to have an impact on the Financial

Statements of the Branch.

. Agnculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to LKAS 16 and LKAS 4l). Effective date I January

2016
. Regulatory Deferral Assets (SLFRS l4)- Effective date I January 2016

Accounting
Standards

Summary of the requirements Possible impact on financial
statements

SLFRS 9.
Financial
Instruments

SLFRS 9, issued in 2014, replaces the
edsting guidance in LKAS 39

Financial lnstruments: Recognition
and Measuement. SLFRS 9 includes
revised guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial
instruments, including a new
expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment on financial
assets, and the new general hedge
accounting requirements. It also
carries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of
financial instuments from LKAS 39.

Effective date of SLFRS t has been

defened till January 01, 2018.

The Branch is assessing the
potential impact on its financial
statements resulting from the
application of SLFRS 9.

Given the nature of the Branch's
operalions, this standard is

expected to have a pervasive
impact on the financial
statements. In particulfi,
calculation of impairment of
financial instuments on an
expected credit loss basis is

expected to result in an increase

in the overall level of impairment
allowances.

SLFRS 15‐
Revenue■om
Contracts with

Customers

SLFRS i5 establishes a

comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and

when revenue is recognised. It
replaces existing revenue recognition
guidance, including LKAS 18 on
Revenue, and LKAS ll on
Construction Contracts.

SLFRS 15 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or
after January 01, 2017.

No sigrificant impact is expected
by applying this standard.
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For the year ended 3Lst December

Net Interest Income

Interest Income

Placements with banla

Financial assets held-for-trading

Loans and receivables to other customers

Financial investnents - Available-for-sale

Interest expenses

Due to banlG

Due to other customers

Treasury bills, teasury bonds and other money market instuments

Net Interest Income

Net Fee rnd Commission Income

Fee and Commission Income

Guarantees

Trade and remittances

Other Banking Services

Fee and Commission Expense

Net Trading Income

Foreign Erchrnge Income

From banla

From others customers

Net Unrealized Forward Erchange Gain / (Loss)

Gains(Loss) on Financiel Assets lfeld For Trading
Capital loss from treasury bills/bonds

Capital gains on treasury bills/bonds

Un realised loss on treasury bills/bonds

Un realised gain on treasury bills/bonds

Other Operating Income

Dividend Income

Intergroup recoveries

Cost recoveries from customers

608,690,736      50,287,948

1,302,200,723   1,266,900,011

475,930,114    774,515,710

382,961,188    436,047,510

2,769,782,761 2,527,751,179

2014

Rs.

2013

R.

(169,415,063)

(153,430,928)

(14,885,52o

(135,159,781)

(119,632,738)

(13,354,709)

o37,731,51つ (268,147,228)

Sincc Apr11 1,2002,net intcrest income“ m treasury bils and treasury bonds has been grossed up by addhg

the notlonJ tax crcdL COnSequent to the interest in∞ me on treastt b■ l and treasury bonds being subJected

wittholdlng tax as d“ Jlcd in Notc 14 3

2,432,051,244   2,259,603,951

44,544,685     27,937,523

93,225,742    120,618,459

775,623,041    727,244,670

913,393,468    875,800,652

(27,476,833)   (31,694,635)

885,916,635    844,106,017

272,849,086    123,081,632

294,569,405    771,901,204

567,418,491    894,982,836

82,376,193     50,813,622

(1,122,734)      (241,196)

84,551,184     40,906,231

(44,482,117)    (68,750,150)

26,893,305     51,266,420

65,839,638     23,181,305

715,634,322    968,977,763

596,250        416,250

53,006,076      52,184,321

19,030,179     32,607,8351

7.
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For lhe fcor ad.d 3tg D.c.nba

9. Rev.6rv(Ch.rgc) for Imprirm.nt or lr.r lr.lis
l,oant rnd R.ctivrbl.. -To olhcr custom.rs

Rcv.rsrl of Allowancls for collccriv€ mpojrmcots (NoL 2 L I )

Rsvcrsd (Charg!) sllo*nc. for Off Bshnc. Shcct coll€.iiv. imp.i.mcnb (NoL 3 l. I )
ExchanS. nrc clungls / Ohcrs

10. P.rlonrd ErFo!.s
Saliry rd honlls

Conintdion ro dcfincd contibudon pLas

Conln.bution io d.fincd Ml plrlrs

Sbre bas.d cxFn!.s
OttEr anowrnc.s rd strffrdaild €xpcrxE

Ottcr Erp.rst
Auditors' rtorcrniorls
Audn ded .,ecns.s
Norr,ldit ft.s to ltdibrs
Eofissicmd trd lcgd dp."!cs
DcFEcirrim ofpropcrry, plrm tnd cquiP,ncot

If..d otrc. ExFrllcs
O6cc rAritrilodhn r d 60blisluD.rt oe.oscs

Provisi@ 6r p.o.l9 ctl[Bls
CIop In$mcc Lcvy (Not Il.I)

ll.l Crop l[.rr.!c. Lvy
CrcD lnsnre for tbc yt{
Ov.r PrDvision for thc y.tr 2013

Op.nairg Pmfr bdorl V m Add.d T.t rnd Nrtbo E![dir! Tlr

2014

Rs

2013

Rs

7,059,189        927,748

3,73Q362   (8914.753)

88,116    (4285774)
lQ877,“,(12272779)

245,714,202    255368,9,2

55,105,74     47,932635

17,2飢 095      18801628
‐          37,141

910,1∞

6∞ ,OXl

555,159

2,294,470

36,976,684

617,28,824

42'p86,772

910.123

650.OSS

2539`78
504,628
32'91,015

808866″ 0
430`おЮ,7,3

33244,“

Audftors R.suD€rdtuo
Saauory ludit
Audi ded s.wic.s
Noo lrdit scrvi:cs

DcFccidio
PrrsoEl Cct
Pmfusioorl md lcsrl oeats.s

13. VrhG AddEd T.I rid Nttb. BtiUirE Trt oi Fhl.cbl Scrvtt
VrlE A.id.d Ta
Nation Buildiry Ta

la. Ir.or. T.t Erp.!s..
Currcrn td d|5gc for thc yt r
Adiustnalt h rc$.d of prfur y.ts
Orcr Provision

D.fcrrd Trt ElpcDs.
Originalion ofdcfdr.d trx arsets (Nol.24)

91● l●0      910123
650,000        650,OSS

5159      2.539,4'8
36´η

`634    32'91,015439,7"ヽ

"   419284`86η 94,47●       S.049,628

296,789,747    266435,959

“

,1■

“

S      i_
353,105,192    266435'59

Profit bcfor. incomc ld
lncome ta\ for lhe p€riod (Accoundng Profil @ applicrbl. ii\ ratc 28 %)

Tax effcct ofcr.mpl incomc
Tax eff.ci ofcxpcns.s thal ar! nol dcductibl. for tax purpos.

Tax cfftct ofcxp.oscs that arc dcductabl€ for lax purpos.

Tax cxpcnsc for th. p.riod

14.3 Noaio[rl trr cr.dit for withtohloS Trr on Cov.mm.ot S.curiti6 on s.condrry Ilirlct tr.n$ctiotr

In t rms ofttE Intmd Rcvcnuc Acr No lO of2OO6, int r..t d.riv.d nom lh! s.condlry marks'l !-ans!.tions h Gov.mmcnt Sccuritis (or or afrcr April l, 2002)

woutd bc cntidcd lo a notionit iax cndir (b€ing l/9 of thc nct inErcsr incomc) providcd suoh intcr6t incomc folm pan of sittuory incorrc for thd y.ar of

Accordingly. rh. Irt inclmc .rrncd by tE Banl fiom th. sccondrry mark t E hsaction in Gov.mmmt S..uridcs for thc y.rr, hrs bc.n g!6scd up in thc

Fi$r|rirt snruncnts rmouiing to Rs:,171250,596/- (2013: R5.1,586,889951^) rnd fic rcsultinS notioml nx crcdit Rs.217,125,060/- (2013: Rs

I 58.688,950/-).

121,●7■482    '6802310
439,798.053 419284686

10.5'5,044      13918.443

■099'9',053 1328759"5

14,“Ю,“    13,18,443

(4嘔 202)   ―

10●95,044  13,18“ 3

OFr.ring proff b.6rE Valuc Addcd T.x ltrd Nrrion BuiHing Td is st{.d tfr.r chrrging.[ dr crpcis.s nEluding rh. followinS:

I,l.l Io r.rns ofFovisbn! oflnl.nd Rcvfluc Acl No.l0 of2OO6 ard am.ndma$ thcrrto, tlE b€nk is lirbb Aom bonkiDg op.rrtio$ at ihc rtE 6 tlclolv

Domcstic Banling Unit 2a'/' 28Y"

Forc'gn CuncrEy Buting Unir

On- shor. oFrdiors 2a'/' 28'/'

Otr- shorc opcrxions 2a'/' 28'/'

14.2 Rtotrcitirthn ofAccounting Profit rod Trlrblc Prolit

791,1",03   756,32.888
‐       66194.838
‐         (550158)

791,198.203  822.577568

(`.423,573)      (379 61Xl)

784,"4630  822197968

2.225.0:2,076   2 131 142'18

623,003,381     5'6,719961

(166,950)       (l16.550)

18`,``0,208     179,342,985

(18,298,436)    (19,013508)

791,198.203 756932888



DEUTSCIIE BANK AG‐ COLOVIBO BRANCII
NOTES T0 1Hr FINANCIAL STATEⅣ ENTS

As al 3Ist December

15. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand

Balances with banks 2,746,454β 36       81,788,283

2014

Rs.

188,940,927

2,935β95,63

1,735,604,000

5,593,442,472

7β29,046,472

296,800,554

579,446

2013

Rs.

215,349,174

297.137.457

16. Balances with Central Bank

Statutory balances with Central Bank of S‖ Lanka(Note 16 1)

Non― Statutory balances w‖ぬCentral Bank of Srl L山

Standhg dcposi facili″

Reversc Rcpo wlth CBSL

Placements with foreign banks in foreign currency

Derivative Financial Instruments
Forward foreign exchange cont-acts

Financial Investments Held for Trading
Sri Ianla Government Securities

Treasury Bills
Treasury Bonds

Group Balances Receivable

Branches ( Branches ofDeutsche Bank AG - Frankfurt)

Subsidiaries of Deutsche Bank AG - Frankfurt

lnter-group receivable

457,443,49

2225,000,000

10β50,000,000

201,120,880

916,300,785

916,300,785

123,536,106       86,377,891

123,536,106 86,377,891

13,032,443,49 201,120,880

16.1 This represents Statutory Reserve Requirement to be maintained with Central Bank of Sri t-anka

under section 93 of the Monitory Act Chapter 422 At present, the minimum cash requirement is 6 oZ

(2013 -6% ) ofthe Rupee Deposit Liabilities. There is no reserve requirement on deposit liabilities of the

foreign currency deposit liabilities of the foreign currency banking unit (FCBU) and foreign currency

deposit liabilities of the Domestic Bankins unit (DBLD.

17. Placemert with Banks

18.

19.

ll,389,146,446

3,152,602,513

14,541,748,959

272,174,517

152,793,716

219,260,827       136,051,091

516,640,827 561,019,324

28
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DEUTSCIIE BANK AG‐ COLODIBO BRANCH
NOTES T0 1H К FINANCtt STATEDIENTS

●
‘

As at 3lst December

Loans and Reieivables to Other Customers

21.1 Loans and Receivables by product' Net of Impairment
Loans and Receivables to customers at amortised cost

Overdrafu
Trade finance

Staff loans

Supplier Finance

Collective allowances for impairment (Note 21 . 1.1)

21.1.1 Allowance for impairment

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Impairment loss / (reversal) for the year

Balance at the end ofthe year

21.2 Concentration of cr€dit risk
Sector wise analysis for Bank's credit portfolio (Loans and advances)

exposure to credit risk in the various sectom ofthe economy.

Agriculture
Finarcial and Business Services

Manufacturing

Tourism

Constuction
Traders

New economy

ln frastructu re

Others

21.3 Exposure to currency risk

Sri Lankan Rupee

United States Dollar

2014

Rs.

3,195,534,515

3,751,032,063

143,690,934

1,990,79,139

2013

Rs.

2,081,122,093

4,126,590,727

146,753,295

2,777,192,610

9,080536,651

〈60,958514)

9,131,658,725

(68,017,703)

9,063,641,0229,019,578,137

68,017,703

(7,059,189)

1,450,454587

64,679,820

3,024,465538

200,004,709

83β 13,608

1,589,736,151

2,505,176265

98,298,822

64,407,151

9,080,536,651

60,958■14 68,017,703

glven below reflects the Battrs

68,945,451

(927,748)

1,266,515,899

1,791,606

999,910,425

95,395,128

80,982,275

3,735,686,649

2,403,748,105

479,613,002

68,015,636

9,131,658,725

4,389,671,086   5,019,722,158

4,690,865,565   4,lll,936,567

9,080,536,651

29
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DEUTSCIIE BANK AG― COLO■IBO BRANCH
NOTES T0 1HEIINANCtt STATEⅣ ENTS

As at 31st December

Financial Investments-Availalle for Sale

Sri Lanka Govemment Securities (Note 22.1)

Inveshnent in unquoted shares (Note 22.2)

Net Available for sale investment

22.1 Sri Lanka Government Securities

- Treasury Bill
- Treasury Bond

- Development Bond

22.2 Investment in Unquoted Shares

Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka

- 100 Ordinary shares ofRs.i,000/- each

L-anka Clear ( Private) Limited
- i50,000 Ordinary shares ofRs. 10/- each

Property, Plant and Equipment

Refer next page

Deferred Tax Assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

Origination during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other Assets

Deposits and prepayments

Ilterest receivables

Clearing account balance

Others

Due to Banks
Borrowings

27. Derivatives Financial Instruments
Forward foreign exchange contracts

2014

Rs.

6β82β41■53   5,969,686,516

1,600,000       1,600,000

6β83,941■ 53   5,971,28C516

2,407,234,850

944,457,949

2,617,993,717

100,000

1500,Ilt10

100,000

1,500,000

1,600,000 1,600,000

15,630β84

6,423573

22,053,957

65,072,826

319,932,876

1,33,916,438

1,556,922

1,620,479,062

15,250,784

379,600

15,630,384

6.114,156

1,355,867,246

2,669,702,598

2,669,702,598

116,674,891     161,890,976

116,674,891     161,890,976

2013

1,474,569,000

2,73,619,40

2,634,153,113

6β82β41β53   5,969,686,516

92,465,461

134,573,779

1,122,713,850

30
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DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FttANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 3lsr Decombet

Duc to Other CBtomars
Due to Other Customc6

2t-l Arrlysis by prodrct
Dcmdd deposits (cuarmt accourts)

Savings deposits

MarBtn Deposib
Fix€d and Otlcl d.DosiB

212 ADrlFi! by corrcncy
Sri l"anka Rupet

Unit d Starcs Dollar

Crcst Britain Pomd
Errro

Hongkong Do[rI
Sing4ol! Dollar
Jrpan.sc Ye

Australi& Dollrt
Canadia, Dollar
swiss Frank

Ottcr Boftowings
Securities sold undcr rcpuchat (rrpo) agccmslt

EDploycc B.Ecfic

Rctir.ocnt Bctr.fit Obligrtioo - Gniuity
Balsllcc as d lst rsnuary

Actt8isl vduation ldjusEEnt
Paymena dudng thc Fa
Balance ss at 3lst Dcaambcr

3l).1 Expensc Rccognisad in tha iDaomc lteteDant

Current service cost

htcrcst cost

Discount Rate o/o

Expected salary increment rate o%

Other I-iebilitics
Accrued expenditure

Interest payable

Impairment charges in respect ofolf-balance (Note 3l i)
Country Risk
DB Provident fund reserve

Other taxes & payables

3l.l Allowrnce for off-balancc shcct, which consists ofconting.nl liabilities and

lcnding commitm.nts

Opcning balancc

Charge(Write back) to incomc statcmcnt

Closing balance

2014

Rs

2013

Rs

1,586

3,747,909

49,6117

14,666,92,198   9,732,350,966

14.666,92,198   9,732,350,966

8282506,747  7,O18,3“ ,872

4,16,781■ 53  1,65,671,723

24,799,193     618,084,998

2,042餌,4115 730249,373
14,666“

"2,198  9,732■
50,66

10,644.565511  6,426,48,フ 99

39633,838`55   2,709,756,195

4,1311■54   17.lX14,115

231514,751     305,601,668

1589

1● 54,684

5,87●17

ム40257    31875,026
4“99       4,888

143,7,1,601     265,361,173

14.666"2,198   9,732,350,966

350,∞細 0 232,900,∞ 0
3卸即 ,ull1 232,900,l100

16,878,137            -

34,78● 2    18,801,628

98`25.245      82,0'3,617

34,078●2      18,801,628

(10,646590) (2,SO,000)
122,056,887      98,625,245

9,862524     9,730210
7●37571     9,071,418

1721Xl,095  18,801.628

30.2 Acturi.l lost racogtrircd io Sttt madt ofProfit or loss .nd othcr Comprchctrsive incomc

Actuarial loss

Totrl

LKAS 19 requires thc use of actuarial techniques to make a rcliable estimate ofthe amount of rctirement bcncfit using the Projected Unit

Credit Method in order to d€tcrmine the present value ofthe retirement benefit obligation. An actuarial valuation was p€rformed on 03th

J.nuary 2015 by Mr. M. Poopalanathan, AIA M€ssrs. Actuarial and Management Consultanls (hn) Ltd. Th€ following princiPal

assumptions werc hade in arriving at ilrc r€tircment obligation as at 3lst Decamber 2014.

85%
10%

10%
10%

125,778,250     143,368,441

38,89       4,932,097

19,252,681

2,``4,683

22,983,043

2,752,799

33,07,536      27,749,900

174,74■ 47   '7,358,640
355,16586  279,144,920

22,83,“3     14,068290

o,730“η  8,"4,753
19■2β1  22,83,043



DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 3lsl December

Group Balances Payable

hter-group expenses payable to HO & branches (Note 32.1)

Borrowings from Head office & Branches

Subsidiaries (Subsidiaries of Deutscbe Bank AG ' Fmnldrt)
HO & branches of Deutsche Bank AG

33. Subordinated Term Debt
Approved subordinated term debt

Assigned Capital
At ttre beginning of the year

hcrease in assigned capital

At the end ofthe year

Statutory Reserve Fund

At the beginning ofthe year

Transfer during the year

At the eDd ofthe year

36. Retained Earnings
At the beginning ofthe year

Profit for the year

Net acturial loss on defined benefit plan

Transfers Aom / (to) other reserves

Profits transfer to Head Office ( Note 3 6. I )

1,660,220,783   1,274,722,653

11,826● 18,875   6,021,484,692

122,717β06     48,450,699

12,147β 33     125,747,773

lβ87,742,213 1,564,203,295

4,410,461,70   4,410,461,270

4,410,461,270 4,410,461,270

415,762,048     350,314,811

71,167,965   65,447,237

486,930,013型 15,762,048_

2,932,396,553   2,798,119,884

1,440,237,446   1,308,944,750

(16,878,137)          ‐

871,119,257    (409,147,250)

o,032,599,053)(765,520,831)
3,194,76,0662,932,396,553

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

13,621,404297 7,470,405,817

32.1 Deutsche Bank Colombo branch is supported by the Asia Pacific Head office and other entities within Deutsche

Bank Group. The charges for such services are re-imbuned by Deutsche Bank Colombo, based on invoices issued by

the supplier, However due to the remittance ceiling imposed by the Cent-al Bank of Sri Lanka, the Bank is unable to

fully settle its obligation in a given financial year. In order to avoid significant build up of liabilities to head office,

part of uffemitted liabilities were t-aDsferred to equiry as "Contributed Assets". Prior to such transfq a confirmation

fiom head office was obtained stating that head office will not demand payment of such liabfities, and the approval of

CBSL was also obtained.

1,387,742,213

With tte pHor approval of the Celltal Bank of Srl Lanka EtIR 8,666,041 86 was borrowed■ om Deutsche Prlvate

Gesch」 hヽmden on 31st October 2007,for a peHod of 10years The rate at which mterestllas been pald■ om Jmuary

to October 2014 was 1 85 0/c and Novemberto December 2014 was 1 64%

The Statutory Reserve Fund is maintained as required by the Section 20 (l) ofthe Banking Act No. 30 of 1988. A sum

equiyaletrt to 5 % ofthe profit after tax, but before any profits transferred elsewhere, should be transferred to above

reserve until the reserve equal to 50% ofthe assigned capital ofthe bank and thereafter a further sum equivalent to 202

of such profit mtil the amount of the said reserve fund is equal to the assigned capital ofthe Bank. The balance in the

statutory reserve fund will be used onty for the purpose specified in the Section 20(2) of the Banking Act No.30 of

1988.

36.l ProFlt trallsfer to Head Ofrlce

■ c retalned proflt for the year ellded 3 1st December 2011&2012,has been mnsfered to Head Ottce m 2014,after

obtalnmg approval tom the Centtal Bank ofS● Lanka and the Deparment Oflnland Revenue

33

34

35



DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As st 31st December

37. Other Reserves

37.1 Investment Fund Account

Banks were required to t-ansfer 8% of the profits calculated for the payment of Value Added Tax (VAT) on

financial services and 5% of the profits before tax calculated for the payment of income tax to a fimd identified

as 'tnvestment Fund Account' (IFA) for a period of three years as per a proposal made in Govemment BudgBt

201l. Since the above mentioned three year period has lapsed the Branch has tansferred the balance in the

above reserve fimd to the retained eamings during 20 I 4 .

372 Erchenge Equalisation of Capital

Exchange equalisation of capitat represents the appreciation /depreciation of capital maintained in foreign

cunency due to exchange rate fluctuation. The exchange rate fluctuation is being accounted under exchange

equalisation of capital.

37.3 Exchange Equalisation of Reserve

Exchange equalisation of reserve repres€nts the effect of currency translation of Income Statement and Reserve

Fund.

37.4 Reserve through Contributed Ass€ts

As explained in Note 32.1 This is the rm remittable head office expenses rcported upto end of financial year

20 I I , converted to e4uity during the fnancial year 20 I 3 with the prior written approval of Central Bank of Sri

37,5 (a) Other Reserves - Bank - Current year 2014

Available-for-sale reserve

Investnent fund Account ( Note 37.1)

Exchange equalisation ofcapital (Not€ 37.2)

Exchange equalisation ofreserye (Note 37.3)

Reserve through Contributed Assets (Note 37.4)

37.5 (b) Other Reserves - Bank - Previous year 2013

Available-for-sale reserve

Investment fund Account ( Note 37.1)

Exchange equalisation ofcapital (Note 37.2)

Exchange equalisation of reserve (Note 37.3)

Resewe tkough Contributed Assets (Note 37.4)

MoYement ClosingBalance

Opellillg Balance

(14,450,308)

925,230,024

146,289,290

124,945,749

1,780,876,243

2,962,890,998

Movemellt

156,224,762

(925,230,024)

2,537,383

(94,912,574)

Closillg Balallce

141,774,454

148,826,673

30,033,175

1,780,876,243

2,101,510,544

(14,450,308)

925,230,024

146,289,290

Opelling Balance

(47,821,402)

581,530,011

119,103,042

133,202,524

33,371,094

343,700,013

27,186,248

(8,256,775)     124,945,749

1,780,876,243 1,780,876,243

34

786,014,175 2,176,876,823 2,962,890,998
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As ot S lst December

38. ComlqitBots rtrd CortiDgctrt Lirbilitics

38. (e) ln the normal coune of business, the branch

liabilities with legal recouse to its customers.

CoEmitBctrls
Guarante6

LetteB ofcrcdit
Forward exchange contact ( n€t)

Usrncc Lnport bill
Othff coEmitnen8

Cotrtitrgetrt lirbilitics
Undrawn loan commitnents

Compensatiotr to KMP

Short term employee benefits

Post employment benefi ts

Termination benefits
Share based pa),rnents

l,€oding facitities granted io KMP
Dcposits hcld by KMP with the braoch

makes various commitrnents and incurs certain contingent

2014

Rs

2013

Rs

3,824β51,169     4,228,885,298

1,892,94,484     1,484,605,704

(134,788,79)      (98,979,990)

696,862,01 736,251,910

119,042,952        45,568,657

6β98,462527   6,396,331,579

13,122β45,71   16,493,463,211

13,122β45,71   16,493,463,2H

19520β07,898   22,889,794,790

38. (b) Capital erp€nditure commitmetrts
There were no material capital commitments as at the reportiog date.

3E. (c) Litigetions agaiNt the Bratrch
There were no pending litigation ofmaterial nature against the Bank

39. Ralrted party trrtrsactiots

39.1.1 TrsNaction witt Group entitics
Amount Eceivable and payable from /to Group entities disclosed ir Notes 20 and 32.

39.1.2 Subordhatc Term Dcbt

With the prior approval ofthe Ceot"al Bank of Sri l,anka ELIR 8,666,041.86 was bonowed from Deutsche Private

Geschafukunden on 3I st October 2007, for a period of l0years. The rale at \ hich interest has been paid fiom January

to October 2Ol4 was 1.85 % and November to December 2014 was 1.64%.

39.2 Tmnsactioos with Kcy Managemctrt Persotrtrel (KMP)

According to Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard (LKAS 24) "Related Party Disclosures", Key Management

personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

entity. The branch considered the members of its Executive Committee as KMP with effect ftom, olst January 201I

since they have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the actiYities ofthe branch.

The members ofthe Executive Committees ofD€utsche Bank AG and their family members have been classified as

KMP ofthe branch as at 3lst Decemb€r 2014.

Immediare family member is defined as spouse or dependent. Dependent is defined as anyone who depends on the

respective KMP for more than 50% ifhis/her financial needs.

2014

Rs

126,116,762

Nil

Nil

8,486502

9,639,778

3,612,014

2013

Rs.

106,394,972

Nil

Nil

9,072,043

14,331,665

1,691,745
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40.

As at 3lst December

Non- Cash items included in Profit Before Tax

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Write offof Assets

Impairment losses on loans and advances

Off balance sheet impairment

Charge for defined benefit plans

Share based payment exPense

Head office Expense

Change in Operating Assets

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in balance with Cenral Bank

Change in placement with banks

Change in other fmarcial investment held for trading

Change in group balance receivable

Change in Loans and advances

Change in frnancial invesunent Available for sale

Change in other assets

Change in Operating Liabilities
Change in due to banks

Change in derivative financial insfuments

Change in deposits from banks, customers and debt securities

issued
Change in other borrowings

Change in other liabilities

Change in due to GrouP balance

Change in subordinated term debts

43.

617,28,824     808,866,220

660,667,795 869,lll,146

o7,158,lo   37,544,829
(12,831■22β69)   597,875,791

916β00,785      96,599,215

7,12,702,487   (9,243,209,322)

44β78,497     375,646,740

51,122,074     263,735,549

(256,430,075)  (2,343,805,878)

o64,611,820)  254,897,596

(5,165,018,635) (9,960,715,480)

2014

ヽ .

36,976,685

51,742

(7,059,189)

o,730■ 62)

17,lltl,095

2013

Rs.

32,791,026

286,126

(927,748)

8,914,753

18,801,628

379,141

41

42.

(2,669,702■98)

(45,16p8o

4,934,641,32

117,400,000

79,901,828

5,533,769,656

(175,403,43o
7,775,390,598

2,669,702,598

(88,356,965)

974,674,864

88,600,000

31,269,762

3,244,022,668

110、 703,836

7,030,616,763

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustment to or

disclosure in the financial statements.

Management Responsibility on Financial Statements

The management of the Bank is responsible for preparing and presenting these financial statements in

accordance with Sri Lanka Accountine Standard.

36
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45. Financial Risk Menagement

Risk exposure for each type of financial ilstrument with changes from prior period
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Risk Management Framework

The diversity of our business model requires us to identiry, assess, mea;ure, aggregate and manage our

risks, and to allocate capital among the businesses. The Bank operates as an integrated goup though its

divisions, business uniti and infrastructure functions. Risk and capital are managed via a fiamework of

principles, organizational structures and measurement and monitoring processes that are closely aligned

with tle activities of the divisions and business units. This framework monitors the activities of Deutsche

Bank AG- Sri Lanka Branch.
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Risk Inventory

Deutsche Bank AG- Sri Lanka Branch faces a variety of risk as a result of its business activities, the

most significant of which are described below credit risk, market risk and operational risk attract

regulaOry capital. As part of our intemal capital adequacy assessment process Deutsche Bank AG- Sri

frd." S;""i, calculaies the amount of economic capital that is necessary to cover all material risks

generated from is business activities, other than of liquidiry risk

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises &om all transactions where actual, contingent or potential claims against any

counterparfy, borrower, obligor or issuer (which we refer to collectively as "counterpalties") exist,

including those claims tiat we plan to distribute (see below in the more detailed section Credit fusk).

These transactions arc typically part of our traditional non tading lending activities (such as loans and

contingent liabilities), raded bonds and debt securities available for sale or our direct trading activity with

clients (such as OTC derivatives, foreign exchange forwards and Forward Rate Agreements).

The bank distinguishes between three kinds of credit risk:

- Default (counterparry) risk, the most significant element of credit risk, is the risk that

counterparties fail to meet contractual obligations.

- Settlement risk is the risk that the settlement or clearance of transactions will fail. It arises

whenever the exchange of caslq securities and/or other assets is not simultaleous leaving us

exposed to a potential loss should the counterparty fail.

- country risk is the risk that we may experience rmexpected default or settlement risk and

subsequent losses in a given country, due to a range of macro-economic Or Social events

primarily affecting counterparties in that jurisdiction including : political and social upheaval,

nationalization and expiopriation of assets, goverffnent repudiation of indebtedness, or

disruptive currency depreciation or devaluation. Comtry risk also includes transfer risk which

arisei when debtors are unable to meet their obligations owing to an inability to transfer assets to

non-residents due to direct sovereign intervention.

Risk Concentration

Risk concentrations refer to a loss potential through unbalanced distiibution of dependencies on specific

risk drivers and can occur within specific risk types ( i.e. intra-risk concentrations) as well as across

different risk types (inter-risk concintrations). They are encountered within and across counterparties,

businesses, regions/countries, legal entities, industries and products, impacting the aforementioned risks'

The managem-ent of risk concentrations is integrated in the management of individual risk types and

monitored"on a regular basis. The key objective of managing risk concentrations is to avoid any undue

concentrations on 
-our 

portfolio which we seek to achieve through a quantitative and qualitative approach

as follow:
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Intra-risk category review are assessed and monitored by the individual risk disciplines (Credit,

Market, operational fusk Management and othen). This is supported by limit setting on different

levels according to risk type.

Inter-risk concentrations are managed by quantitative top-down stress-testing and qualitative bottom-

up reviews identifiing and assessing risk themes independent of any risk type and providing a

holistic view across the bank.

The most senior govemance body for the oversight of risk concenfalions throughout 2014 was the

portfolio Risk Committee @RC) which is a subcommittee of the Capital and Risk Committee (CaR) and

the Risk Executive Commiuee @isk ExCo).

Credit Risk Ratings

A basic and key element of the credit approval process is a detailed risk assessment of each credit-

relevant counterparty. When rating a counterparty we apply in-house assessment methodologies,

scorecards and our 2l-grade rating scale for evaluating the credit-worthiness of counterparties

Monitoring Credit Risk

Ongoing active monitoring and management of credit risk positions is aa integral part of our credit risk

-"r"gonent framework. The key monitoring focus is on quality trends and on concenrations along the

dimerisions of comterparty, industry, country aad product specific risks to avoid tmdue concent'ations of
credit risk. On a porrfolio level, significant concentrations of credit risk could result from having material

exposures to a mrmber of counterparties with similar economic characteristics, or who are engaged in

comparable activities, where these similarities may cause their ability to meet contrachral obligations to

be affected in the same manner by changes in economic or industry conditions.

The Deutsche Bank AG- Sri Lanka Branch portfolio management framework supports a comprehensive

assessment of concentrations within its credit risk portfolio it order to keep concentratiors within

acceptable levels.

Asset Quality

All loans where known information about possible credit problems of borrowers causes our management

to have serious doubts as to the collectability ofthe borrower's contractual obligations are included in this

section

Past Due Loans
Loans are considered to be past due if contractually agreed pa).rnents of principal and/or interest remain

tmpaid by the borrower, ixcept if those loans are acquired through consolidatiiln. The latter are

considered to be past due if piymenS of principal and-/or interest, which were expected at a certain

payment date at the time ofthe initial consolidation ofthe loans, are unpaid by the borrowet.

Renegotiated and Forborne Loans
For eJonomic or legal reasons we might enter into a forbearance ageement with a borrower who faces or

will face financial difficulties in order to ease the contractual obligation for a limited period of time. A
case by case approach is applied for our corporate clients considering each transaction and client specific
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facg and circumstances. Forbearances are restricted and depending on the economic situation of the

client, our risk management strategies and the local tegislation. In case a forbearance agreement is entered

into, an impairment measurement is conducted as described. below, an impairment charge is taken if
necessary and the loan is subsequently recorded as impaired

Loans that have been renegotiated in such a way that, for economic or legal reasors related to the

borrower's financial diffculties, we granted a concession to the borrower that we would not otherwise

have considered are disclosed as renegotiated loans and are a subset of forbome loans.

Impairment ofLoans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Credit Risk Management regularly assesses whether there is objective evidence that a loan or goup of

loaas is impaired A loan or group of loans is impaired and impairment losses are incuned if:

- there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of a loss event that occurred after the initial

recognition of the asset and up to the balance sheet date ("a loss event"). When making our

assessment we consider information on such events that is reasonably available up to the date the

financial statements are authorized for issuance in line with the requirements of IAS 10;

- the loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the finalcial asset or the group of

financial assets, and

- a reliable estimate ofthe loss amount can be made.

Credit Risk Management's loss assessments are subject to regular review in collaboration with Group

Finance. The results of this review are reported to and approved by an oversight committee comprised of

Group Finance and Risk Senior Management.

If there is evidence of impairment the impairment loss is generally calculated on the basis of discounted

expected cash flows using the original effective interest rate of the loan. If the terms of a loan are

renegotiated or otherwise iodified because of financial difficulties ofthe borrower without qualifoing for

a delrecognition of the loan, the impairment loss is measured using the original effective interest rate

before m-odification of terms. We reduce the carrying amount of the impaired loan by the use of an

allowance account and recognize the amount of the loss in the consolidated statement of income as a

component ofthe provision for credit losses. We record

increases to our ailowance for loan losses as an increase of the provision for loan losses in our income

statement Charge-offs reduce our allowance while recoveries, if any, are credited to the_ allowance

account. If we d;termine that we no longer require allowances which we have previously establishe4 we

decrease our allowance and record the amount aS a reduction of the provisiOn for loan loSses in our

income statement. When it is considered that there is no realistic prospect of recovery and all collateral

has been realized or transferred to us, the loan and any associated allowance for loan losses is charged off
(i.e., the loan and the related allowance for loan losses are removed from the balance sheet). While we

Lr.ss th. impairment fo. or. .orforut" credit exposures individually, we assess the impairment of our

smaller-balance standardized homogeneous loans collectively. Our collectively assessed allowance for

non-impaired loans reflects allowanies to cover for incurred losses that have neither been individually

identified nor provided for as part ofthe impairment assessment of smaller balance homogeneous loans-
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Credit Review Process

According to Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch management, the credit review procedures performed

are as below:

Regular credit reviews by relevant regional or global offices: all debtors or debton' groups are regularly

reviewed subject to the policy and procedures applicable in the relevant regional or global offices and also

depending on any changes of Deutsche Bank's intemal credit rating and Lpdated situatiors which may

affect the repayment ability ofreviewed debtors.

Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch does not have approval authority, it normally submis all of the

credit review reports to be acknowledged or approved by the regional office.

All non-performing loans shall be managed and monitored by the relevant regional or global office.

There is no credit review policy for loans granted to Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch's staff. The

loans are granted lo existing staff and their repayment is made by deduction fiom the employee's salary.

Credit Risk Quantitative disclosures

(a) Maximum amount of exposure (before deducting the value of cotlateral), description of collateral,

information about credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and

information about credit quality offinancial assets.
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(b) For financial assets that are past due or imlair€4 disclosures on age, factors considered in

determining as impaired and thi description ofcollateral on each class offinancial asset.

3l Dec 2014 : No individually impaired assets as at this date

31 Dec 2013 : No individually impaired assets as at this date

(c) Information about collateral or other credit eniancements obtained or called

The Deutsche Bank - Sri Lanka Branch regularly agrees on collateral to be received liom or to be

provided to customers in contracts that are iubject to credit risk. Collateral is security in the form of

ln ^r"t o. third-party obligation that serves to mitigate the inherent risk of credit loss in an

opo.r.", by eithei.,ibrtit tlng the borrower default risk or improving recoveries in the event ofa
aebautt. riynite collateral can bJ an altemative source of repayment, it generally does not replace the

necessity of high quality underwriting standards.
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Deutsche Bank― S五 Lanka Branch segregates collateral rcccived into the following"vo types:

‐ Financial and othcr collateral,whlch enables us to recover all or part ofthe outstandhg eXposure

脚 器 脚 雛 乱 翼 」蹴
1舗 職 1瀧 鮮 驀 鼈other dals or lnvcntory,eqdpment(e_g"Plant

catcgory

― G:1カrantee collateral,which complcments the borower's ability to ilflll its obligatlon under the

legal contract and as such is provided by third Pates Leters of credち 血 urance contracts,expon

credit insuran∝ ,guarantees and Hsk palticipadons typically fall mto ms Category

(d)Other quanti江市e dsclosures

(i)  TOtal gross Crcdlt Hsk exposures,plus avcrage gross exposure over tt peHod broken dow■
by maJor"peS OfCredt exposure

2013

摯s i 31 Dec__■輸re"_

2,747.034

201121     305,610
81788    2‐ 207.898

916.300     122,630

749,785

933042
682490
8,967500

Placemenls wirh Banks

Rsrelse Repurdlase Agreemerts
trl€shnent in Golemmeit Seolrilies
ofier invesfnents
Loafls and Adaances

10350.000

13711,388    18020,333
1.600         1600

9000.537     7.606.132

38573002     36960.eSl

1892994
2192,973

46614,3“

13.122345

20511.416

1600

狐 833

1■ 986.261

1.600

9.121Z″

Tctal oGDalance sheel iteri3

Leters ot ffedil
GuaEfltees
iErepiances
Dertu€lites (oross)
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(iii) Industry or counter-parry type distribution of exposures, broken down by major types

of credit exposure.
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(iv) Residual contractual maturity breakdown of the whole
types of credit exposure.
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(v) Amount of past due loanVimpaired loans by industry, counterparty with details of
specific and general loan loss provisioning.

31 DeE 2014
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Note : The General Loan Loss provisioning (GLLP) reported above has been comPuted as per Direction

issued by the Monetary Board of ie Cenral bank of Si Lanka on 27h September 20l0 in terms of Section 46(l) of
the Baniking Act, No. iO o7 t eAA , as amended, requires all licensed commercial banlcs to re&rce the rate of general

loan loss irovisioaing iy 0.1 o% per quarter, commencing 1'' October 2010, to achieve a general loan loss

protisioning of 0.596 iftotal outstanding on-balance sheet performing loans and advances by 3l'' Decenber 201 1-
-The 

above bLLp is not included in thefnancial statements (replaced by collective impairment).
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(vi) Amount of past due loans and , if available, impaired loans provided separately

broken down by significant geographic area including the amount of specific and

general loan loss provisions related to each geographical area.

E.sr Ps.jfE (t rcl lorlh & LEbr anb! & llitdb
gri Lanka 5n Ltnlial AtrarE! r-rd E]lro't Cfiers TotEl

3`●― ―  『2“
`

riFild blr|a (Wed!flt P)

Spccifu tlP (WcCern Ft,

G6n rd U, t-l

31 teclntr. 201 3
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G.nrfil UP f_)

小 403

(vii) Reconciliation ofchanges in the provisions for loan losses/impairment'

ヽ ● P●C (Ⅸd   NC"h&‐ aF   ■tta S“
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し

節  a,L     S● こ口rに,       メV籠yt泊          三agt      Eu・●●e    O憲 ¨         '園

45“

ユ:`ニ“
=21ま
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A貯●こョoこS tr“,a日鯖rt

So● ritt ε:ct■ inc〔 ,c,Frar・ neri

日aLncebeglnnmgoFneyear

rlrlirci:!'i agri';ti6E icr iifiF8irm9.i

Erturc€ begionihg oitie Ycar 68,017,703 68,945,451

「evem)for the r7.嗜 .1 748ヽ

Balance Etlhe end oitie 60.95S,E14 63.017.703

Market Risk

Market risk arises liom the uncertainty conceming changes in market prices and rates (including interest

rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices), the correlations among them and their

Ievels of volatility.

. Trading market risk arises primarily through the market-making and trading activities in the

various cash and derivative markets.

o Non-trading market risk arises fiom assets and liabilities that are typically on our books for a

longer perio-d of time (i.e. non-consolidated strategic investments, altemative asset investments'

sign;t aira saving deposits, and equity compensation), but where the inherent value is still

d;pendent on the movement offinancial markets and parameters'
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. Treded default rislc arises fiom defauls and rating migations relating to trading instruments.

Types of market risk

Substantiauy all ofthe Bank's businesses are subject to the risk that market prices and rates will move and

result in profits or losses. The Bank distinguishes among four types ofmarket risk:

- lnterest rate risk including credit spread;

- Equity price risk (where applicable);

- Foreign exchange risk; and

- Commodity price risk (where applicable).

DB encounters market risk in both its trading and non-trading activities, by. making markets and taking

p.riiii,ir fir--aih, equity, forelg, exchange,lther securities and commodities as well as in equivalent

derivatives.

Market risk Management Framework

The Bark uses a combination of risk sensitivities, value-at-risk and stress testing metrics to manage

market risk and establish limits. value-at-risk is a common metric used in the management of trading

market risks.

The Management Board and Group fusk Committee, supported by Group Market Risk Management

which is oart of the independent .isk management fi.mction, set a Group-wide value-at-risk limit for the

.*[" ;.f.. in the trading bbok Group Market fusk Management sub-allocates this overall limit to the

Group Divisions. Below that" Iimits are allocated to specific business lines and tading portfotio groups

and geographical regions. haddition to the Bank's main market risk value-at-risk limits, also stress

testing and sensitivity limits are operated

The Bank s value-at-risk for the bading businesses is based on intemal model. trn october 1998, the

German Banking Supervisory Authority (now the BaFin) approved the intemal value-at-risk model for

calculating markl risk capltal for the Group for both the general and specific market risk Since then the

model hasbeen periodically refined and approval has been maintained,

ぶ R    USD    ttUR =■
E

:Ⅲ Eり RIく

ぃ.17η  (19勁 c81)   67interest rate ttsk

(o200bps par」 ねl shllt h νdd CuⅣ e)

Fx Risk

Market Risk - Quantitative disclosures

(a) Sensitivity analysis of each type of market risk to which DB Colombo is exposed to:

(b)Additionalinformation,ifthesensitivityanalysisisnotrepresentativeofDBColombo's
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risk exPosure: N/A

(C)Other quanti● t市e disclosures

(i)Sensltl宙ty ofAssets and Liabiliies
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(ii) Statement of foreign exchange position
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Liquiditv Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk arising from the Deutsche Bank - Sri Lanka Branch's potential inability to meet

all payment obligations when they come due or onJy being able to meet these obligations at excessive

costs. Liquidity risk is managed through the Assa and Liability Committee C'ALCO). This comrnittee,

chaired by Treasury, is responsible for both statutory and prudential liquidity.

Liquidity risk is monitored through the lntegrated Risk Management Framework and the intemal DB

Colombo branch liquidity policy. Ongoing liquidity management is discussed as a regular item at the Sri

l,anka A-LCO meeting which takes monthly basis. At the ALCo meeting, DB Colombo Branch's

liquidity position, limit utilization, changes in exposure and liquidity policy compliance are presented to

the committee.

DB Colombo branch's liquidity risk model is based on tlree main liquidity risk models. (l) Stess testing

and scenario analysis; (2) Frmding matrix; (3) Maximum cash outflow (lr4CO) modeling'

Stress testing and scenario analysis are used to evaluate the impact of sudden stress events on our

Iiquidity positions. The scenario types cover instittrtion-specific events (e.g. severe rating downgrade),

market related event, as well as a combination of both which links a systemic market shock with a multi

notch rating downgrade. Stress test results show overall net liquidity position across 8 week.

Funding matrix addresses the long-term liquidity risk management issue of the branch. This identifies the

excess or shortfall of assets over liabilities in each time bucket, facilitating management of open liquidity

exposures.

A prudent liquidity limit setting process is in place for the maximum cash outflow ("MCO") limits which

allows Treasury to monitor and contol excessive short-term funding $ps up to an eight week period- The

MCO limits are calibrated from local liquidity stress tests and reviewed on a regular basis to reflect

changes in the balance sheet profile ofthe entity.

(a) Other quantitative disclosures

Trends

31‐Dec 13 2014R311SI
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Loans lo dJstomer deposits
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(ii) Maturity Analysis ofAssets and Liabilites
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Ooerational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes' people and

systems, or from extemal events. It inctudes legal risk but excludes business and reputational risk

We have categorized operational risks into the following risk B?es for our 2014 self assessment process:

- Origination & Execution Risk is the risk that deficiencies and/or errors in the origination of

productyservices/transactions, their execution, inappropriate business practices, or contactual

obligations will result in losses.

- Fraud Risk is the risk of incurring losses as a result of an intentional act or omission by an

employee or by a third party involving dishonesty, for penonal and/or business gain, to avoid

personal and/or business loss, or to conceal improper or unauthorized activity. This includes the

falsification or alteration of records and reports, facilitation, breach ofrust, intentional omissioq

misrepresentation, concealment, misleading, and the abuse ofone's position'

- Business continuity Risk is the risk of incurring losses resulting fiom the interruption of

normal brsiness activities, i.e. intemrptions to our infiastructure as well as to the infrastructwe

that supports our businesses (including third party vendors) and the communities in which we are

located.

- Regulatory Compliance Risk is the risk of incuning regulatory sanctions (including resrictions

on business activities, fines or enhanced reporting requirements), financial and/or reputationa.l

damage arising from our failure to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations'

- Information Technology Risk is the risk that our information technolory will lead to

quantifiablelossesduetoinadequateinformationtechnoloryandprocessingintermsof
manageabiliry, exclusivity, integrity, controllability, and continuity'

- Information security Risk is the risk of an event which could result in the compromise of

organizationalassets,including,butnotlimitedto,unauthorizeduse,Ioss,damage,disclosureor
modification oforganization assets. It includes tlre risk of cyber threats on the organization.

- vendor Risk arises from adverse events and risk concentrations due to failures in vendor

selectiorq insumcient controls and ovenight over a vendor and/or services provided by a vendor,

and other impacts to the vendor itself.

- Fiduciary Service Risk is the risk to fail to act in the best interest of our clients when advising

investing accounting for or safeguarding client assets, including rhe failure to prevent, detect or

correct negligence and./or violations of fiduciary responsibilities, and the failure to appropriately

address fiduciary conflicts of interests that may arise'

- Financial Reporting and Recording Risk is the risk that a mis-reporting or mis-recording in

the financial statements results in an operational risk related event and, potentially' an

operational risk related loss.

- Reat Estate Risk or Facilities and Infrastructure risk is the risk of incurring a loss resulfing

fiom damage to or the loss-of-use ofthe bank's Facilities'{nfrastructure'
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- Staff Risk is the risk that shortcomings in processes and procedures related to the employment of

internal staff either directly generate a loss or indirectly contribule to the occulrence of evens in

other risk categories.

- Tar Compliance Risk describes operational risk related to the filing of tax retums and other tax

related tasks, e.g. failure to file advance tax retums, being subject to a tax audit, or incurring tax

payments etc.

- Transaction processing Risk is the risk that deficiencies in transaction processing or in our

internal processes or contols result in losses. The risk is caused by human erroq IT applicatiors

system failure and inadequate process design.

l,egal Risk may materialize in any of the above risk D?es due to the fact that in each tyPe, we may be the

subject of a claim or proceedingS alleging non-compliance with contractual or other legal or stafubry

responsibilities; or we may otherwise be subject to losses allegedly deriving fiom other legal

circumstances.

Managing Operational Risk at Deutsche Bank AG' Sri Lanka Brench

Deutsche Bank AG, colombo Branch manages operational risk according to policies and guidelines set

t"Jfy o. Uy Group that enable the bank to determine the OR profile in comparison to Deutsche Bar:k's

rist 
"pp"rii" 

and systematically identifi OR themes and concentrations to define appropriate risk

mitigating measures and priorities. The most important ones are:

- Principles for Managing Operational fusk - Deutsche Bank Group

- Operational Risk Management (ORM) Events Policy

- . Operational Risk Toolset Policy

- Operational Risk Acceptance Policy

- Vendor Risk Management PolicY

- Minimum Requiremints for Handling and Recording of Complaints - DB Group and

- Divisional and Functional Policies and Key Operating hocedures'

At local level, the Country Chief Operating Officer acts as the Country Operational Risk Ofiicer (CORO)

and is r.rponsible for adequate *onito.ing- -d reporting to oRM. As part of the country governance, in

addition tL rhe mandatory and primary divisional-OR management, the CoRO must be informed by all

local divisions and functions about OR related matters locally enabling her to fulfill her responsibilities

The Country Flashcard is prepared on a regular basis representing current operational risks in Sri l-anka

and to be ieviewed and discussed with the regional ORM management. CORO presents the Country

Flashcard to local OPCO. The flashcard is built on new operational risk events that have taken place,

irend analysis and economic capital over the past quarters and key actions agreed and tracked via dbTrack

which is the central tracking system for OR risk and tracking items'

Deutsche Bank AG, Colombo Branch has implemented the risk management processes and systems as

being conducted at the Group level. As mentioned above, Deutsche Bank Group has applied an advance

.oaEl upp.o""h (AMA) for operational risk management and implemented the economic capital (EC) to

Ｏ
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calculate the capital charged while Deutsche Bank AG,Colombo Branch,with the guldance■ om the

cenml Bank ofS● L泳へuses thc Basic hdlcator Approach eIA)to c」 Culate the capital

capial

Caが tal Structure:

Bank Supervlsion Circdar dated 29th July 2010 requlres Bmb to malntaln血 nmum Core Capltal of

LKR 3 bn atthe end ofthe reponng pedod,wih an enhmcementto LKR 4 bn by 31 December 2013

and LKR5bnby31 December2015

DB Colombo Branch's Core Captt aS at31st Decembcr 2014 is LKR 9 9 bn compnsed as folloWS

core Capnalinstruments

in LKRコ 10

at histoncal iates

31st Dec 2014 1lst DeC"13

4,410

487

3194
1 7Sl

9873

Detalls ofTier Ⅱ Caph」 mmments:

Ti●「‖Capiね‖nstruments lヨ exchange rates on reporung dete)

|口 L民R¬ | こlst DeC 2014    31St Dec 2013

Assigned cap tal

Stattory Reserves

l口vestnent FundAccc unt Reserve

Retained earnings

Spedal ReseⅣ e

■410

416

925

2,932

1,781

10恥 5

Subordinated Term Debt (*)

(-) value considered for CAR

1.384

554

1.564

938

The Subordinated Term Debt of EUR 8,666,041.86/- was issued by Deutsche Bank Privat- und

Geschaftskunden AG on 3lst octob€r 2007 for a period often (10) years. This instrument complies with

the terms and conditions stipulated in Bark Supervision Direction No. 9 of 2007, Maintenance of Capital

na"q*"v n"ti" and has been duly approved by the Bank Supervision Departsnent ofthe central Bank of

Sri Lanka

Capital Management

The DB Group's Treasury function manages the DB Group',s capital at group level and locally in each

region. The allo.ution of financial resources, in general, and capital, in particular, favon business

polfolios with the highest positive impact on the DB Group's profitability and shareholder value.

Capital Adequacy

Deutsche Bank AG- Sri Lanka Branch differentiates between regulatory and economic capital demand'

while regulatory capital demand is based on the calculation of risk-weighted assets according to the

,.qui.".Jn . sei out'by the Basel Committee and amended by the Central Bank of Sri Lank4 economic
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captal dcmand is based on DB Group's estimate ofthe Hsk exposure of the ent● baSed On intemal● sk

models

Ъ e bcal captt adequacyぉ sいsmcntヽ part ofttc ongohg oversight血 江ヽpcrfomed by the Assa and

Liability Conlmite(ALCO)of Deutschc Bank― SH Lat BmncL mth ultimate ovcrsight by the l∝ al

management

聴 k Wettbted Assets and Caが tal req」rement

In TLKR 31st Clec 2014 31st Dec 2013

4.410,461

3,107、 418

2932397

Core capitai Assigned capital
Res eNes
Retained eamings

nerl attustrnenL(DefTax&VE bdances)

4,410,461

2.267、 806

3.¬ 94,276

lier attusted Capna

1ler‖ capnal Cen prov

subdebt

lcta Captta

Rsk,′eighted amount for credit ttsk

Rlsk weighted arnountfor ma「 ket nsk

Rsk weighted arnountfo「 operatonal nsk

TOta nsk■″e19hted ancunt              __

Ratios:
ldin required Tler「 ato‐ 5%

α≧054)   (15,6301
9,850,48L  10.434,646

柵 響
12949,991     12003,920
1,912,140       2068,000

響 ミ

ー

4597%
4856%

5426%
5914%
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DEUTSCHE BANK AC― COLOMBO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. Accountirg Classification and Fair Values ofFinancial InstrumeDts (cont )

46.2 Feir Value ofFiraDcial lrstrumetrts

46.2.1 Fair Value Eierarchy

The Following table provides the analyses ofasseb and tiabilities measured at fair value as at the Reporting date, by the level

in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. These amounts were based on Ote values

recognised in the Staternent ofFinancial Position.

As et 31st Dccember 2014

tr'inancial Assets

Derivativc Finarcirl Itrstruments
Finrocial Itrvestmcnts Held for Tradiug
Treasury Bills
Treasury Bonds

Finaocial l.rvestments - Availablc- for-sale

Treasury Bills & Bonds

Equity Secudties

Financial Assets

FinaDcial Liabilities
Derivative Financial lnsnuments
Other Borrowings
Finaacial Liabilities

As at 3lsl December 2013

Finalcial Assets

I)erivstive trinaDcial IDstrumetrts

Financial Investments Held for Trading
Treasury Bills
Treasury Bonds

Fiuancial Investments - Available-for-sale

Treasury Bills & Bonds

Equity Secu ties

Fitratlcial Assets

Fitraocial Liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments

Other Borrowings

Finatrcial Liabilities

Level l

Rs.

Leve1 2

Rs.

123,536,106

1,735,604,000

5,593,442,472

6,382,341,353

1,600,000

123,536,106

1,735,604,000

5,593,442,472

6,382,341,353

1,600,000

1,600,000     13,836,523,931

116,674,891

350,300,000

466,974,891

161,890,976

232,900,000

86,377,891

11,389,146,446

3,152,602,513

-       5,969,686,516

1,600,000          1,600,000

1,600,000 20,S99,413.366

161,890,976

232,900,000

86,377,891

11,389,146,446

3,152,602,513

5,969,686,516

20,597,813β66

394,790,976           ‐            ― 394,790,976

46.2.2 Assets for Which Fair Value approximates Carrying Value

For the financial assets and financial liabilities \.vith short term matu ties, it is assumed that the carrying value approximates

their fair value. Hence fair value hierarchy is not applicable for the said financial assets and financial liabilities.

13,834,923,931

116,674,891

350,300,000

466,974,891-          ―            ‐

Lve1 3          Total

ヽ
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